
 

 
 

OPEEP Board of Directors Meeting 
Thursday, September 16, 2021  

10:00 am – 12:00 pm 
 

Teams Meeting 
(Please see calendar invitation)  

 
 

Agenda 
 

Welcome and Introductions: (Chair Machado) 
Approval of Agenda 
 
1. Consent Items 

a. Approval of Minutes (Scott Moss) 
 

2. Discussion Items 
a. Broker RFP (Scott) 
b. Legislative Update (Kirk Mylander) 
c. Cyber Liability Coverage (Scott) 
d. GEM Board Meeting (Scott)  
e. My Tentative Plans (Scott)  
f. Auto Coverage for Volunteers (Erik)  

 
3. Action Items 

 
 

4. Information Items 
a. Claims Report (Scott) 
b. Financial Report (Scott) 
c. Next Board Meeting (All) 

 
 
Adjourn 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

1



 

OPEEP Board of Directors – September 16, 2021 
Consent Item 

Approval of Board Meeting Minutes 
  

 
Action 
Requested:  

 
Approval of minutes from the May 18, 2021, regular meeting of the 
Board of Directors.

 
Responsible 
Staff: 

Scott Moss, Administrator 

 
Attachments: Minutes from the May 18, 2021, meeting

 
 

Background:  OPEEP Bylaws require the Administrator to provide for the 
keeping of minutes of regular and special meetings of the Board, 
and to provide a copy of the minutes to each member of the 
Board at the next scheduled meeting.  The Board formally 
approves a written summation of its prior actions.  

    

Discussion: The minutes are attached for your review and correction.  

Recommendation: Approval of May 18, 2021, minutes. 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2



 

OPEEP Board of Directors Meeting 
Tuesday, May 18, 2021 

Via Zoom 
Minutes 

 
The OPEEP Board of directors meeting was convened at 1:03 p.m.  OPEEP Board of Directors 
in attendance via Zoom were President Eric Machado (Clackamas County), Erik Kropp 
(Deschutes County), and Mark Jennings (Washington County).  In attendance from CIS was 
OPEEP Administrator Scott Moss, OPEEP Vice President/CIS General Counsel Kirk Mylander, 
Chief Financial Officer Eric Yahnke, Underwriting Manager Tena Purdy, Financial Reporting 
Accountant Marne Anderson, and Administrative Support Manager Joleen Wallace.  Also, in 
attendance were Mary Wray and Stephen Romero from Willis Re. 
 
Consent Items 
Approval of Minutes  
It was requested to amend the incorrect premium allocation methods for all three counties in the 
March 12, 2021, minutes.  The corrections are as follows: 
 
Clackamas County  6.8% 
Deschutes County  3.2% 
Washington County  9.9% 
 
Mylander moved to approve the amended minutes.  Kropp seconded the motion, and the Board 
unanimously approved the minutes. 
 
Discussion Items 
Willis Report  
Wray shared that AON announced their intent to purchase Willis Towers Watson, and that Willis 
RE is being sold to Gallagher RE.  All associates and business assets will be acquired in the 
purchase and they expect no changes to their internal operational teams.  The closing is expected 
to take place by the end of the third quarter of this year. 
 
Wray also announced she will be retiring September 1, 2021.  Her replacement will be Phil 
Williams, who has been in the insurance industry and consulting for pools for decades.  Romero 
will continue to work with Williams. 
 
Wray recapped the Reinsurance Renewal update for the Board noting the final terms regarding 
OPEEP primary and excess casualty.  The overall casualty premium has a rate reduction of –
10.2%, with CIS moving from a $1million SIR to a $2 million SIR, while the counties will stay at 
$1 million.  The communicable disease exclusion is the only other change. 
 
Romero mentioned we’re still out to market for cyber liability.  We’ve received one quote from 
Markel, with a 25% increase with the same terms and conditions, which we will accept.  Markel 
will be exiting the public entity space and intends to non-renew July 1, 2022.  CIS’ final 
membership/limit to be provided on or before August 15, 2021.  Moss mentioned OPEEP could 
consider pooling together and writing limited cyber coverage. 
 
 
 
 

3



 

$20M Limits 
Moss stated the Oregon Health Department is asking Oregon counties to sign an agreement 
related to managing homes for individuals with mental health issues.  While we can offer the $20 
million limit to OPEEP members, we are not able to offer it to non-OPEEP members. 
 
Administrator’s Objectives 

1. Encourage OPEEP Board to attend pool management training at AGRiP. 
2. Attend at least two quarterly GEM meetings in person or remote.  
3. Prepare an OPEEP Annual Report in the Fall of 2021. 
4. Maintain the OPEEP website. 
5. Board lunch meeting with Ron Cutter and Geoff Sinclair. 
6. Meet with Counties: Marion, Lane, Jackson, and Douglas. 
7. Audit, Actuarial Evaluation, Report to State. 
8. RFP, selection, and contract for broker/consultant Winter/Spring. 

 
Moss stated he will be meeting with Douglas County this Thursday to discuss OPEEP and if they 
have any interest in it.  Machado asked the status of future AGRiP conferences.  Moss said he 
believes their fall conference is virtual.  Moss noted GEM meetings are quarterly and will begin in 
person starting with their July 22-23 conference in Denver, CO.  Let him know by May 30 if you’d 
like to attend. 
 
Action Items 
Approve 2021-22 Budget 
Moss presented the 2021-22 budget to the Board.  This budget reinstates the expenses that were 
eliminated last year and includes the 75% confidence level funding.  Moss recommends adding 
$200,000 to surplus as the allocation sum is under the 25% of member contributions. 
 
Mylander moved to approve the 2021-22 budget.  Jennings seconded the motion, and the Board 
unanimously approved the budget. 
 
Approve 2021-22 Contributions 
Moss reviewed the 2021-22 contributions with the Board. 
 
Jennings moved to approve the 2021-22 contributions.  Kropp seconded the motion, and the 
Board unanimously approved the contributions. 
 
Renewal of OPEEP & CIS Agreement 
Moss discussed the OPEEP and CIS agreement and mentioned it automatically renews in 
October 2021 for another five years.  It was requested we change the term of the contract to July 
1, 2021, rather than October 15, 2021.  This will streamline the process and allow for it to follow 
our fiscal year budgeting.  There were no other change in terms. 
 
Machado moved to approve amending the term of the OPEEP and CIS Agreement to July 1, 
2021.  Jennings seconded the motion, and the Board unanimously approved amending the 
OPEEP & CIS Agreement. 
 
Information Items 
Legislative Update 
Mylander updated the Board on current bills that may affect CIS/OPEEP: 

4



 

The Legislature is still in session and there are no new updates since the March 16, 2021, Board 
meeting.  He also noted the email he recently sent to the Board regarding SB 198, which refers 
to the State indemnifying counties for community restoration services. This bill is being tracked 
and we should know more about it next week. 
 
Claims Report 
The Board received a report of claims submitted to Markel and GEM. 
 
Financial Report 
Moss reviewed the 2021-22 YTD Revenue and Expenditures Report with the Board.  The current 
Net Position for OPEEP is $847,394.   
 
Next Board Meetings 
The next quarterly Board meeting is scheduled for September 16, 2021, 10:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. 
in Clackamas County.  This will be an in-person meeting.  
 
December 9, 2021, 11:30 a.m. – 3:00 p.m. in Washington County.  Moss will contact Brown & 
Brown to invite them to lunch.   
 
 
Machado adjourned the meeting at 2:57 p.m. 
 

  

5



 

OPEEP Board of Directors – September 16, 2021 
Discussion Item 

Broker RFP 
  

 
Action 
Requested: 

 
Discussion 

 
Responsible 
Staff: 

Scott Moss, Administrator 

 
Attachments: None 

 
 

Background:  Willis Re Pooling, the current broker for OPEEP, 
discontinued on September 1, 2021. An RFP for a 
replacement broker was issued on August 18, 2021.  The 
contract with Willis was cancelled and a refund is due. 

 

Discussion: The RFP schedule is as follows: 
 
RFP Issued August 18, 2021 
Questions Due August 31 (None Received)
Due Date September 29
Evaluation/Interviews October 6-15
Award Contract October 15
Contract Start November 1

 
Heard from Alliant, AON, and Gallagher.  Brown & Brown 
will not be responding.  
 

Recommendation: Schedule interviews the first two weeks of October.  Please state 
preference of participating in interviews.    
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
  

6



 

OPEEP Board of Directors – September 16, 2021 
Discussion Item 

Legislative Discussion 
  

 
Action 
Requested: 

 
Discussion 

 
Responsible 
Staff: 

Kirk Mylander, OPEEP Vice President/CIS General Counsel 

 
Attachments: None 

 
 

Background:  Kirk will report an update on active legislation.  

Discussion: Discussion of legislation under consideration. 
 

Recommendation: None. 
 
 
 

 
 

   

7



 

 OPEEP Board of Directors – September 16, 2021 
Discussion Item 

Cyber Liability Coverage 
  

 
Action 
Requested: 

 
Discussion 

 
Responsible 
Staff: 

Scott Moss, Administrator 

 
Attachments: None 

 
 

Background:  Markel has told OPEEP they will not renew cyber liability in 
2022.  
 

Discussion: Cyber liability coverage is becoming increasingly difficult to 
obtain. We are told pools are not able to obtain coverage 
because cyber underwriters want to individually underwrite 
accounts rather than a pool underwrite the accounts.  The new 
broker will be tasked with finding coverage, but it may be on an 
individual basis.  
 

Recommendation: Advise Administrator on recommendations.  
 
 
 

   

8



 

OPEEP Board of Directors – September 16, 2021 
Discussion Item 

Governmental Entities Mutual (GEM) Board Meeting 
  

 
Action 
Requested: 

 
Discussion 

 
Responsible 
Staff: 

Scott Moss, Administrator 

Attachments: 
 
GEM Meeting Recap 
Boston Marathon Bombing

 
 

Background:  GEM holds four Board meetings a year. Scott Moss 
attended the first Board meeting virtually. 

 

Discussion: Scott will recap the GEM Board meeting July 22 and 23, 
2021.   
 
The next GEM Board meeting is October 28, 2021, in 
Scottsdale, Arizona. The topic is cyber security.  
 
 

Recommendation: Advise Administrator of any preferences.  
 
 
 

 
 
 

9



 

 

 Government Entities Mutual, Inc., PCC 

JULY 2021:   Meeting Recap  Page 1 of 2 

July 29, 2021 

TO:  GEM Member Representatives 

FROM:  Andrew Halsall 

RE:  July 2021 Meeting Recap 

 
The following is a synopsis of the major discussions and decisions that occurred at the GEM Board 
Meeting, Annual Meeting and Strategic Communications Summit in Denver, CO, on July 22 & 23, 
2021.  Members with questions on any of these items are encouraged to contact David Harmer 
or Andrew Halsall. 

 
Strategic Communications Summit 

Three speakers addressed a range of topics related to crisis management, including leadership, 
communications and social media strategies.  Reference materials provided by the speakers are 
enclosed. 

 

Board and Annual Meetings 

Retrocession Simulation Analysis 

The Board reviewed the analysis prepared by Ben Kraus and noted the estimated impact of the 
various alternative reinsurance structures. 

Member Surplus Contribution Requirements 

The Board approved two changes to the Member Surplus Contribution and Withdrawal Policy: (1) 
the minimum surplus account balance  is to be expressed as 25% of gross written reinsurance 
premium  instead  of  50%  of  net written  reinsurance  premium;  and  (2)  no  additional  surplus 
contribution is required until the deficiency is $50,000 or more. 

Governance Review 

The Board approved, in principle, an external review of GEM’s Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, 
Governance Policy and the Nominations & Elections Policy that would benchmark GEM against a 
peer group of  small  to medium  sized mutual  insurers.   Mr. Halsall was  requested  to  seek an 
estimate of the fees involved, for consideration at the October Board meeting. 

   

10



 
 
 
 

 
 Government Entities Mutual, Inc., PCC 

JULY 2021:   Meeting Recap  Page 2 of 2 

External Auditor 

The Board approved the appointment of Johnson Lambert as external auditor for the year ended 
December 31, 2021. 

Washington State Insurance Regulations 

Mr. Halsall outlined the new regulations in Washington state.  To support the legal opinion that 
these  regulations  do  not  apply  to  GEM,  he  requested  that  all  members  their  provide 
organizational documents, including charter, articles of formation or incorporation, bylaws and 
whichever  agreement  establishes  the  pooling  of  risk,  such  as  interlocal  or  joint  powers 
agreement or member agreement.  These would be reviewed by GEM’s attorney. 
 
Board Election 

Director Tom Judy informed the members that, due to his retirement plans, he did not expect he 
would serve a full three‐year term on the GEM Board, if elected, and withdrew his nomination.  
The Board thanked him for his service to GEM.  Ann Bennett and Ryan Cole were elected to their 
first terms, and Bob Solarz was elected to his second term. 
 
Officer Appointments 

David Harmer, Bryan Anderson and Brett Davis were appointed as Chair, Vice Chair and Secretary 
respectively. 
 
Committee Appointments 

Ann Bennett was appointed to the Governance and Nominating Committee and Brett Davis was 
appointed to the Executive Compensation and Benefits Committee. 

 

11



 

OPEEP Board of Directors – September 16, 2021 
Discussion Item 

Administrators Tentative Plans  
  

 
Action 
Requested: 

 
Discussion 

 
Responsible 
Staff: 

Scott Moss, Administrator 

 
Attachments: None 

 
 

Background:  The administration of OPEEP is handled by CIS.  The 
OPEEP Board recently approved an additional five-year 
contract with CIS for administration.  

 

Discussion: Scott’s plans are always “written in the sand at low tide” and 
require approval from CIS and the real boss, Cindy Moss.  
 
Scott would like the OPEEP Board’s support in handling 
OPEEP’s administrative duties until June 30, 2025.  
 
 

Recommendation: Advise Administrator of any concerns about continuing to act as 
OPEEP administrator. 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

12



 

OPEEP Board of Directors – September 16, 2021 
Discussion Item 

Auto Coverage for Volunteers  
  

 
Action 
Requested: 

 
Discussion 

 
Responsible 
Staff: 

Erik Kropp 

 
Attachments: OPEEP Liability Coverage Agreement

 
 

Background:  Erik Kropp asked the following topic to be placed on the 
agenda: 
County volunteers driving youth (it happens with our “COPY” 
program out of our sheriff’s office – the program pairs adult 
volunteers with youth who have incarcerated parents). The 
discussion: minimum insurance requirements, making sure a 
claim would be covered by excess, etc. 

 

Discussion: Board discuss coverage for volunteers. 
 
OPEEP Liability Coverage Document sections 1.E, 1.M, and 
6.I.  
 
Discussion of no coverage for uninsured and underinsured 
motorist.  No medical pay coverage. No PIP (Personal 
Injury Protection) 
 

Recommendation: None 
 
 
 

 
 

  

13



 an 

OREGON PUBLIC ENTITY EXCESS POOL 

EXCESS LIABILITY COVERAGE AGREEMENT 

2020-21

14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



-

26



27



 

OPEEP Board of Directors – September 16, 2021 
Information Item 

Claims Report 
  

 
Action 
Requested: 

 
Information Only 

 
Responsible 
Staff: 

Scott Moss, Administrator 

 
Attachments: Claims Report 

 
 

Background:  A claims report and update will be provided at each board 
meeting.   

    

Discussion: CIS has submitted the attached claims to Markel satisfying the 
reporting requirements.  
 
Erik Kropp can discuss the two Deschutes County cases.  
 
Reporting Requirements 

 Reserves in excess of $500,000 
 Fatalities 
 Spinal cord injuries with paralysis 
 Serious burns 
 Brain injuries 
 Amputations 
 Class action suits 
 Serious sensory impairments 
 Serious disfigurement or scaring 
 Major organ injuries 
 Sexual abuse or sexual harassment claims 

 

Recommendation: None. 

 
 

28



Markel  Policy Year Premium  OPEEP Retention OPEEP Remaining
Premium 6,188,127$     2015‐16 1,571,234     0 0  Christian  1,109,114$ 

Losses 7,479,894$     2016‐17 1,647,571     0 0

2017‐18 885,616         1,000,000$          1,000,000$         

2018‐19 911,516         1,000,000$          0 Graves 2,615,921$  Kenny 3,754,859$   

2019‐20 1,172,190     1,000,000$          1,000,000$         

2020‐21 2,421,179     1,000,000$          1,000,000$         

2021‐22 2,264,809     1,000,000$          1,000,000$         

29



Claim # Entity Name Department Program Year Event Date laim Statu Claimant Name Claim Total ReservesClaim Total Paidlaim Total Incurred
GLDESCOOPEEP2016082057 Deschutes County Sheriff 2017-18 7/1/2017 Open Crystal Jansen 250,000.00$             250,000.00$     

GLFRV2020088393 Fairview Public Works 2020-2021 7/16/2020 Open Estate of Suzanne Auvil $500,500.00 $2,500.00 $503,000.00
GLCOSC2017079356 Coos County Sheriff 2017-2018 12/3/2017 Open Estate of Rocky Stewart $463,710.81 $46,289.19 $510,000.00
GLTOL2017079126 Toledo Fire 2017-2018 10/16/2017 Open Will Ewing $476,669.80 $73,330.20 $550,000.00
GLYAMC2021088984 Yamhill County Sheriff 2020-2021 1/20/2021 Open Estate of Brent Cordie $605,000.00 $0.00 $605,000.00
GLJEFC2019084757 Jefferson County Sheriff 2019-2020 8/29/2019 Open Estate of Emily Dyer $613,549.50 $1,450.50 $615,000.00
GLTUR2017076097 Turner Police 2016-2017 3/22/2017 Open Larissa White $455,724.85 $160,975.15 $616,700.00
GLJOSC2018081573 Josephine County Corrections 2018-2019 9/5/2018 Open Estate of Janelle Butterfield $563,793.39 $56,206.61 $620,000.00
GLBEA2018081155 Beaverton Police 2018-2019 7/18/2018 Open Denise Blair $582,920.80 $40,329.20 $623,250.00
GLGSP2018081914 Grants Pass Police 2018-2019 7/17/2018 Open Debra Blake $429,791.42 $220,208.58 $650,000.00
GLLINC2020086472 Linn County Sheriff 2019-2020 3/11/2020 Open Estate of Tina Ketcham $724,134.00 $5,866.00 $730,000.00
GLJEFC2017083813 Jefferson County Sheriff 2017-2018 11/19/2017 Open Ezra Thomas (Minor) $920,956.08 $36,043.92 $957,000.00
GLWSHCOPEEP2018087795 Washington County Sheriff 2017-2018 1/19/2018 Open Estate of Remi Sabbe $1,000,000.00 $0.00 $1,000,000.00
GLCOSC2019085344 Coos County Sheriff 2019-2020 10/31/2019 Open Estate of Christina Ryan $989,439.14 $10,560.86 $1,000,000.00
GLTIG2018082104 Tigard Current Planning 2018-2019 9/5/2018 Open Estate of Sammuel Sheperd $945,359.37 $96,640.63 $1,042,000.00
GLYAMC2018079652 Yamhill County Sheriff 2017-2018 1/15/2018 Open Estate of Kathleen Norman $1,033,690.55 $16,309.45 $1,050,000.00
GLBENC2018082510 Benton County Corrections 2018-2019 12/23/2018 Open Estate of Alyssa Sund $1,075,666.76 $44,333.24 $1,120,000.00
GLGRS2020087029 Gresham Police 2019-2020 5/31/2020 Open Estate of Israel Berry $1,204,883.00 $117.00 $1,205,000.00
GLDESCOPEEP2018079986 Deschutes County Sheriff 2017-2018 1/31/2018 Open Eric Kozowski $1,215,000.00 $0.00 $1,215,000.00
GLNORC2020086097 Northern Oregon Corrections Other 2019-2020 2/4/2020 Open Estate of Jennifer McLaren $2,050,223.48 $24,776.52 $2,075,000.00

30



 

OPEEP Board of Directors – September 16, 2021
 Information Item 

Quarterly Financial Report 
  

 
Action 
Requested: 

 
Review Quarterly Financial Report 

 
Responsible 
Staff: 

Scott Moss, Administrator 

 
Attachments: Quarterly Financial Report

 
 

Background:  Article III of the OPEEP Bylaws provide for quarterly meetings 
of the Board of Directors.  The OPEEP financial report is 
provided at each quarterly meeting.   

Discussion: 
 
 
 
 

The quarterly financial report will be provided at the Board 
meeting.  

Recommendation: Discussion only.  

 
 
 

 
   

31



 2020-21 
Total 

Adopted 
Budget 

 2020-21 
YTD 

Adopted 
Budget 

 6/30/2021
YTD Actual 

 2020-21 
YTD 

Variance 

 2020-21 
Total 

Adopted 
Budget to 

YTD 
Variance 

 a  b  c  (b-c)  (a-c) 

Operating Revenue
Member Contributions 3,596,434$   3,596,434$  3,859,448$  (263,014)$  (263,014)$    

Operating Expense
Ceded, Acquisition & Claims Costs

Reinsurance Expense 2,722,000     2,722,000    2,686,435    35,565       35,565         
Reinsurance - Broker fees 50,000         50,000         83,304         (33,304)      (33,304)        
Claims Expense 1,000,000     1,000,000    1,000,000    -                 -                  

Other Operating Expense
Member Services and Program Costs

Personnel Services
CIS Allocated Exp- Salary & Benefits 95,359         95,359         95,988         (629)           (629)            

Materials and Services
Actuarial Study 7,500           7,500           6,750           750            750              
Audit- Financial 6,000           6,000           7,800           (1,800)        (1,800)         
Audit - Claims -                   -                   12,629         (12,629)      (12,629)        
Dues and Subscriptions 1,500           1,500           2,893           (1,393)        (1,393)         
Marketing -                   -                   837              (837)           (837)            
Bank & Investment Fees 500              500              1,017           (517)           (517)            
Insurance 500              500              485              15              15                
Other Operating Expense 500              500              250              250            250              
CIS Allocated Exp- G & A 4,192           4,192           4,220           (28)             (28)              
CIS Allocated Exp- Systems 8,383           8,383           8,438           (55)             (55)              

Total Operating Expense 3,896,434     3,896,434    3,911,047    (14,613)      (14,613)        

Net Operating Revenue (Expense) (300,000)      (300,000)      (51,599)        248,401     248,401       

Other Income and (Expense)
Investment Income -                   -                   31,913         31,913       31,913         

Capital Contribution -                   -                   200,000       200,000     (200,000)      
Other Income and (Expense) -                   -                   231,913       231,913     (168,087)      

Change in Net Position (300,000)$    (300,000)$    180,314$     480,314$   480,314$     

Unaudited - for Management Use Only
2020-21 YTD Revenue and Expenditures Report

OPEEP

32



June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,121,977$             3,170,176$          
Receivables 4,331,346               -                      

Total Current Assets 8,453,323               3,170,176            

Noncurrent Assets
GEM Deposit 500,000                  500,000               

Total Noncurrent Assets 500,000                  500,000               

Total Assets 8,953,323               3,670,176            

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable -                         28,575                 
Accrued expenses payable 61                           -                      
Unearned contributions 4,131,346               -                      
Claims liabilities - current portion 1,000,000               -                      

Total Current Liabilities 5,131,407               28,575                 

Noncurrent Liabilities
Accounts payable due to CIS 500,000                  500,000               
Claims liabilities 2,274,208               2,274,208            

7,905,615               2,802,783            

Net Position - beginning balance 867,394                  832,029               
Change in Net Position 180,314                  35,365                 

1,047,708$             867,394$             Total Net Position

Liabilities

OPEEP
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Unaudited - for Management Use Only

Assets

Total Liabilities

Net Position

33



 

OPEEP Board of Directors – September 16, 2021
 Information Item 

Board Meeting Dates 
  

 
Action 
Requested: 

 
Adopt a Board meeting schedule for the upcoming year 

 
Responsible 
Staff: 

Scott Moss, Administrator 

 
Attachments: None 

 
 

Background:  Article III of the OPEEP Bylaws provide for quarterly meetings 
of the Board of Directors.    

Discussion: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The proposed meeting schedule for 2021-22 is as follows: 
 
Month Location 
December 9, 2021 Washington County
March 2022 CIS
May 2022 Deschutes County

 
December 9, 2021, 11:30 a.m. – 3:00 p.m. in Washington 
County.  Moss will invite Brown & Brown to lunch.  

Recommendation: No action needed.    

 
 
 

 

34




